# **COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT**

Between



# CUPE BC AND LOCALS

(hereinafter termed the "Employer")

And



(Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

(hereinafter termed the "Union")

January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2021

# COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN: C.U.P.E. BC DIVISION, CUPE LOCALS 23, 379, 389, 403, 523, 561, 728,

873, 900, 1004, 3500, 3523, 4879

AND: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

## TABLE of CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 — PURPOSE	
1.01	
1.02	
1.03	
ARTICLE 2 - BARGAINING UNIT and RECOGNITION	
2.01	
2.02	
2.03	······
2.04	8
2.05	8
2.06	8
2.07	
ARTICLE 3 - UNION SECURITY	8
3.01	
3.02	8
3.03	
3.04	
ARTICLE 4 - THE RIGHTS of the EMPLOYER	g
ARTICLE 5 — DEFINITION of EMPLOYEES	9
5.01 Probationary Period	
5.02 Regular	
5.03 Regular Part-Time	9
5.04 Temporary	
5.05 Casual	10
5.06	10
ARTICLE 6 - UNION REPRESENTATION	
6.01	10
6.02	10
6.03	
6.04	
6.05	
ARTICLE 7 - HOURS of WORK and OVERTIME	
7.01 Regular Work Day	

7.02	Regular Work Week	
7.04		12
7.05		
7.06	Overtime Premiums	12
7.13		13
	E 8 — STATUTORY HOLIDAYS	
8.02		13
8.03		14
ARTICL.	E 9 — ANNUAL VACATIONS	14
9.08	D-+ 0 2- 0 2'-	16
9.09	Past Service Credits	16
9.11	E to I DAVE of a DEENGE	16
	E 10 — LEAVE of ABSENCE	
10.01.	Paragram and Lagran	
	Bereavement Leave	16
10.03	Maternity and Parental Leave	
10.04	Leave for Medical/Dental Appointments	17
10.05		18
10.07	Domestic Violence Leave	18
	Gender Reassignment Leave E 11 — SICK LEAVE, WELFARE PLANS and PENSION PLAN	18
11.01		
11.01	Sick Leave	19
11.02	Medical Plan	
11.03	Wage Indemnity Plan	19
11.04	Dental Plan Extended Health Benefit Plan	20
11.05	Pension Plan	
11.00		
11.08	Group Life Insurance E.I. Premium Rebate	20
44.00	Lett a remitted recode minimum	

11.09	Benefit Plan Coverage20
11.10	Long Term Disability20
11.11	Employee Assistance Program21
ARTICLI	E 12 – WAGES21
12.01	21
	21
	21
	21
	21
12.06	21
12.07	21
12.08	
ARTICLE	E 13 – SENIORITY
13.01	
13.02	22
	22
13.07	
13.08	
ARTICLE	14 – PROMOTION, LAYOFF AND RECALL
14.01	23
14.02	23
14.03	23
14.04	Layoff23
14.05	Notice of Lay-off24
14.06	24
14.07	Recall24
14.08	24
14.09	24
ARTICLE	15 - GENERAL
15.01	25
15.02	
15.03	25
15.04	Jury Duty25
15.05	25
15.06	25
15.07	Tuition Fees26
15.08	26
15.09	
15.10	
15.11	26
ARTICLE	16 - DISCHARGE AND TERMINATION

16.01	27
16.02	
16.03	27
16.04	
ARTICLE 17 - TECHNOLOGICAL OR PROCEDURAL CHANGES AND SEVERANCE PA	Y 27
17.01 Definition, Notice, Disclosure and Consultation	
17.02	
17.03	
17.04	
17.05 Severance Pay	28
17.06 Off Premises Equipment	28
ARTICLE 18 - GRIEVANCES	28
ARTICLE 19 – SINGLE ARBITRATOR	29
ARTICLE 20 – HEALTH AND SAFETY	20
20.01 Eye Examinations	29
20.02 Office Equipment	29
ARTICLE 21 – DURATION	30
21.01	
21.02	30
APPENDIX "A"	31
JOB TITLES AND JOB LEVELS	31
Differentials	31
CATEGORIES, CLASSIFICATIONS AND SALARIES	32
APPENDIX "B	36
JOB DESCRIPTIONS	36
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING No. 1	41
SEXUAL AND/OR PERSONAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE	41
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING No. 2	43
HOURS OF WORK	43
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING No. 3	44
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING No. 4	45
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT #1	46
APPENDIX "F"	47
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN CUPE BC DIVISION AND COPE 378	47
7.01 Regular Weekly Hours	47
7.02 Regular Daily Hours	47
7.06 Overtime	47
8.01 List of Holidays	47
APPENDIX "D"	48
Christmas/New Year's Shut Down	48
9.01	48
APPENDIX "A"	49
Salary Schedule (continued)	49
ADDENDIV "D"	

VARIANCE TO THE COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CUPE LOCAL 900 ANI	O MoveUP
Re: Mary Follweiter	51
ARTICLE 5 - DEFINITION OF EMPLOYEES	51
5.01 Probationary Period	51
5.02 Regular	51
5.03	51
5.04	51
5.05	51
5.06	F4
ARTICLE 6 - UNION RECOGNITION	51
6. 03	51
6. 04	52
ARTICLE 7 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	52
ARTICLE 8 - STATUTORY HOLIDAYS	52
8.01	52
8.02	52
ARTICLE 9 - ANNUAL VACATION	52
9.02	52
9.03	52
9.06	52
ARTICLE 10 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE	52
10.02 Bereavement Leave	55
ARTICLE 13 - SENIORITY	52
13.04	52
13.05	52
ARTICLE 14 - PROMOTION, LAYOFF AND RECALL	53
14. 05 Notice of Layoff	53
15. 04 Jury Duty	53
15.07 Tuition Fees	53
ARTICLE 16 - DISCHARGE AND TERMINATION	52
16.02	53
ARTICLE 17 - TECHNOLOGICAL OR PROCEDURAL CHANGES AND SEVERANCE PAY	7 52
17.01 Definition, Notice, Disclosure and Consultation	53
17.02	52

BETWEEN: C.U.P.E. BC DIVISION, CUPE LOCALS 23, 374, 379, 389, 403,

561, 718, 728, 873, 900, 1004, 3500, 3523, 3742, 4879

(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Party of the First Part;

AND: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

Party of the Second Part;

## ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE

#### 1.01

The purpose of this Agreement is to maintain a harmonious relationship between the Employer and its employees; to define clearly the hours of work, rates of pay and conditions of employment; to provide for an amicable method of settling differences which may arise from time to time and to promote the mutual interest of the Employer and its employees; to promote and maintain such conditions of employment.

#### 1.02

For the purpose of clarification, it is understood that wherever the singular or feminine is used in this Agreement the same shall be construed as meaning the plural or masculine unless the context or parties require otherwise.

1.03

The parties hereto subscribe to the principles of the Human Rights Code of British Columbia.

## ARTICLE 2 — BARGAINING UNIT and RECOGNITION

#### 2.01

The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole bargaining authority for all employees in its offices within the jurisdiction of <u>MoveUP</u> (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378), and within the classification of office and clerical workers listed in Appendix "A" or within such new classifications as may from time to time be agreed and established by the parties. It is expressly agreed that this Agreement shall not apply to any elected or appointed officer, business agent or representative of the Employer.

#### 2.02

All members shall be required to use their Union Label.

## 2.03

The Union Label shall be made available to the Employer. The privilege of using the Union Label shall be extended to the Employer as long as this Agreement remains in full force and effect and the Employer is fulfilling all of its terms and conditions.

The Union Label shall be the official Union Label of <u>MoveUP</u> (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union) with the designation of Local 378 and shall remain the sole property of the Union.

2.04

The employees shall not be asked to make any written statement or verbal contract which may conflict with this Agreement.

2.05

It shall not be a violation of this Agreement or cause for discharge of any employee, in the performance of <u>their</u> duties, to refuse to cross a legal picket line. The Union shall notify the Employer as soon as possible of the existence of such recognized picket lines.

2.06

The Employer shall not discharge, discipline or otherwise discriminate against any member of the Union for participation in or for action on behalf of the Union, or for the exercise of rights provided by this Agreement.

2.07

During the life of this Agreement, there shall be no lockout by the Employer or any strike, sit-down, slow-down, work stoppage or suspension of work either complete or partial for any reason by the Union.

## ARTICLE 3 — UNION SECURITY

3.01

The Employer agrees that all employees shall maintain Union membership in <u>MoveUP</u> (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union) as a condition of employment.

3.02

When office workers are required, current paid-up members of the Union will be hired. Such requests are to be directed through the Union office. Should office workers who are Union members not be available and qualified, the Employer may obtain office workers elsewhere, it being understood that the employee will join the Union within fifteen (15) days and remain a member of the Union in good standing, as a condition of continuing employment. The Employer agrees to advise the Union office when requiring the Union to supply competent office workers.

3.03

Upon commencing employment the Employer will have any new employee complete and sign the COPE 378 membership application card and the dues, initiation, assessments deduction authorization. The Employer agrees to deduct the amount authorized as Union dues, initiation and/or assessments once each month and to transmit the monies so collected to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union by the fifteenth (15) of the following month, together with a list of employees from whom such deductions were made. If requested, a copy of this list will be forwarded to the Job Steward.

The Employer agrees to acquaint new employees with the fact that a Union Agreement is in effect and with the conditions of employment set out in the Article dealing with the Union Security.

# ARTICLE 4 — THE RIGHTS of the EMPLOYER

The Union recognizes the rights of the Employer to hire and promote, and to discipline or discharge any employee for just cause, the Employer also has the right to establish policy rules and organize the work force subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the right of the Union or employee to grieve as provided in Articles 18 and 19. COPE 378 members will be instructed not to interpret the Employer's Collective Agreement.

# ARTICLE 5 - DEFINITION of EMPLOYEES

## 5.01 Probationary Period

All new employees, except temporary and casual employees, will be considered probationary for the first sixty (60) working days of employment. After sixty (60) working days employment, an employee will become regular.

A temporary employee transferred to or attaining regular status will not be required to serve a further probationary period beyond the first sixty (60) working days of employment.

# 5.02 Regular

A regular employee is any person employed on a full-time permanent basis whose duties fall within the bargaining unit as defined in Article 2 of this Agreement and who has completed the probationary period.

## 5.03 Regular Part-Time

A regular part-time employee is any person employed on a continuing basis for less than the normal hours of work or work week, whose duties fall within the bargaining unit as defined in Article 2 and who has completed the probationary period. Regular part-time employees shall be covered by all conditions of this Agreement except as follows:

- Sick leave entitlement shall be on a pro rata basis consistent with the time employed.
- b) After three (3) months service, regular part-time employees shall receive statutory holiday pay on a pro rata basis consistent with the number of hours normally worked in weeks not containing a holiday.
- c) Annual vacation entitlement shall be pro-rated in accordance with the actual time worked during the period the vacation was earned and shall be in proportion to the entitlement of a full-time regular employee with the same calendar period of service. Vacation pay shall be as provided in Article 9.

## 5.04 Temporary

a) A temporary employee is one so informed by the Employer at the start of employment. Temporary employment shall be for a specified period not exceeding three (3) months' duration except as provided in Article 5.04(b) below, whereupon such employee shall attain regular status.

A temporary employee reaching regular status will have rights under this Agreement which are based on length of service for seniority dated from the start of employment.

- b) Temporary employees hired to replace employees on leave of absence under Article 10.01 and 10.03 shall not attain regular status during the duration of their temporary employment.
- c) A temporary employee shall be entitled to a combined Statutory, Annual Holiday Pay and pay in lieu of benefits at a rate of twelve percent (12%) of gross earnings. In addition, the Employer shall pay premium contributions in accordance with Article 11.06.

#### 5.05 Casual

- a) Casual or extra employees shall be those employees hired for extra or relief work for periods of up to one (1) month. Such employees shall be paid at the rates provided in this Agreement and will be guaranteed not less than four (4) hours work on each day which they are employed.
- b) A casual employee shall be entitled to a combined Statutory, Annual Holiday Pay and pay in lieu of benefits at a rate of twelve percent (12%) of gross earnings. In addition, the Employer shall pay premium contributions in accordance with Article 11.06.

#### 5.06

The Employer or their Representative shall make known to the employees their duties and from whom they shall receive instructions as to the policies and procedures of the establishment.

#### ARTICLE 6 — UNION REPRESENTATION

#### 6.01

The Employer shall recognize the Representative(s) selected by the Union for purposes of collective bargaining, Agreement administration and general Union business, as the sole and exclusive Representative(s) of all employees within the bargaining unit as defined in Article 2 of this Agreement.

#### 6.02

The Representative(s) of the Union shall have the right to contact the employees at their place of employment on matters respecting the Agreement or its administration.

The Union will obtain authorization from the Employer as to an appropriate time for such contact before meeting the employees.

The Employer recognizes the Union's right to select Stewards and designate Union Representatives to represent its members. The Union agrees to provide the Employer with a list of Stewards, their locations and the name of the Union Representative. The Employer agrees that such Stewards and Representatives shall not be hindered, coerced, restrained or interfered with in any way in the performance of their duties, permission to leave work or meet with an employee during working hours.

6.04

Leave of absence may be requested by the Union for an employee to attend to Union business. Where possible, such leave will be granted by the Employer.

6.05

Leave of absence may be requested by the Union to cover full-time duties as an officer of the Union without loss of seniority or benefits coverage, so long as there is no cost to the Employer and the Union shall pay all benefits monthly.

## ARTICLE 7 - HOURS of WORK and OVERTIME

## 7.01 Regular Work Day

A regular work day shall consist of six and one-half (61/2) hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.

## 7.02 Regular Work Week

A regular work week shall consist of thirty-two and one-half (32½) hours worked between 8:00 a.m. Monday and 5:00 p.m. Friday.

7.03

The Employer shall specify the hours of work and the schedule of the hours to be worked, in writing, at the time of hire. The Employer will provide as much notice as possible, and in any event, will provide at minimum one weeks notice of any change in hours of work or schedules. The time frame specified may be altered by mutual agreement between the parties.

- a) Hours of work as provided in Articles 7.01 and 7.02 may be varied subject to mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union.
- b) Regular part-time will be scheduled for no less than four (4) hours in a day.
- C) The Employer shall specify the hours of work and the schedule of the hours to be worked, for regular part-time employees, in writing, at the time of hire. The Employer will provide as much notice as possible, and in any event, will provide a minimum one weeks' notice of any change in hours of work or schedules. The time frame specified may be altered by mutual agreement between the parties.
- <u>d</u>) Where an established practice or procedure is already in place, it will continue.

- <u>e</u>) The Employer agrees that any change away from or back to the regular work day and/or regular work week will be implemented only by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union. Such changes could encompass a nine-day fortnight or a four-day work week. Permission will not be unreasonably withheld.
- 7.04
- a) A one (1) hour lunch period will be provided and taken within the two (2) hours in the middle of the regular working day, precise time to be arranged between the Employer and employee.
- b) The lunch period may be shortened by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union, from one (1) hour but not less than one-half (½) hour.
- Two (2) relief periods per day of fifteen (15) minutes each, one (1) in the morning and one (1) in the afternoon, shall be taken without loss of pay.

## 7.06 Overtime Premiums

All time worked before or after the regularly established working day or as varied by mutual agreement as per Article 7.03, shall be considered as overtime and paid at the rate of two hundred (200%) percent of the employee's pro-rated hourly rate.

- All time worked on Saturday, Sunday or on a statutory holiday, as provided in Article 8 or on a day granted in lieu thereof, shall be considered as overtime and paid at the rate of two hundred (200%) percent of the employee's pro-rated hourly rate.
- All employees requested to work overtime beyond the regular work day shall be allowed a one (1) hour paid meal period at the regular pro-rated hourly rate of pay, provided such overtime is in excess of two (2) hours work. The meal period may be taken before, during or after the overtime work as may be appropriate and mutually agreed.
- Employees who are called in during regularly scheduled days off or vacations, or who are called back to work outside the regular working day, other than for regularly scheduled overtime, shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours' pay at the overtime rates, provided the employee reports for such work.
- Regularly scheduled overtime shall mean overtime for which at least twenty-four (24) hours notice has been given. Emergency overtime shall mean overtime for which less than one (1) day's notice is given. Employees requested to work beyond their regular shift with less than twenty-four (24) hours notice, that is emergency overtime, shall work up to two (2) hours under regular overtime provisions. Work beyond the two (2) hour allowable period shall entitle the employee to not less than two (2) hours additional pay at overtime rates. The meal hour allowance in the foregoing Article 7 shall be separate and apart from the above premium provisions.

Overtime shall be voluntary. Overtime shall first be offered to the employee who regularly performs the duties, then by seniority to those employees who are qualified and able to perform the duties.

7.12

Employees who work overtime may elect to take time off in lieu of overtime pay but such time off must be taken at a time mutually agreed upon with the Employer. The length of time off with pay shall be equal to the straight time equivalent to the overtime earnings.

7.13

Paid sick leave or extended sick leave shall not reduce overtime pay earned during a regular work day or work week during which such sick leave occurred.

#### ARTICLE 8 - STATUTORY HOLIDAYS

#### 8.01

The Employer agrees to provide all regular employees with the following statutory holidays, without loss of pay:

New Year's Day	Family Day	Good Friday
Easter Monday	Victoria Day	Canada Day
British Columbia Day	Labour Day	Thanksgiving Day

Remembrance Day Christmas Day Boxing Day

and any other day that may be stated a legal holiday by the Provincial and/or Federal Government.

Any other holiday recognized by an individual Employer shall be provided, without loss of pay, to employees working for said Employer. Territorial or Civic Holidays, when declared, shall be provided to the employees working in the said location where the holiday is declared. The Employer further agrees that should one (1) of the above statutory holidays fall on either a Saturday, a Sunday, or an employee's regularly scheduled day off and no other day is proclaimed in lieu thereof, the employee shall receive an additional day or days off, with pay, to be taken the working day preceding the holiday or the working day succeeding the holiday or at a time mutually agreed by the Employer and the employee.

## 8.02

In the event any of the holidays enumerated in the foregoing Article 8.01, occur during the period of an employee's vacation, an additional day's vacation with pay shall be allowed for each holiday so occurring.

All work days between December 27th and January 1st shall be time off with pay. Where an employee is required to work between the above period for operational requirements, the equivalent time off will be granted in the following year. Such time will be scheduled by mutual agreement and shall be taken by December 31st. Such time cannot be carried forward to a subsequent year, banked or cashed out.

# ARTICLE 9 - ANNUAL VACATIONS

9.01

 Upon completion of twelve (12) months service, an employee shall be entitled to receive a paid vacation of fifteen (15) working days.

Payment for such vacation period shall be at the employee's current wage rate or six (6%) percent of gross earnings for the period in which the vacation was earned, whichever is greater.

- b) Upon completion of six (6) months service in the first year of employment, an employee shall be entitled to receive a paid vacation of five (5) working days which if taken, will be deducted from the total entitlement for that year. Such vacation shall be taken at a time mutually agreed with the Employer.
- 9.02

Each employee who completes five (5) years service shall receive twenty (20) working days paid vacation. Pay for such vacation shall be at the employee's current wage rate or eight (8%) percent of gross earnings for the period in which vacation was earned, whichever is greater.

9.03

For each year of service in excess of five (5) years, each employee shall receive one (1) working day paid vacation, to a maximum of thirty (30) working days.

<b>Total Vacation Hours</b>	Vacation Days	Years of Service
97.5 Hours	15 Days	1 – 4
130 Hours	20 Days	5
136.5 Hour	21 Days	6
143 Hours	22 Days	7
149.5 Hours	23 Days	8
156 Hours	24 Days	9
162.5 Hours	25 Days	10
169 Hours	26 Days	11
175.5 Hours	27 Days	12
182 Hours	28 Day	13
188.5 Hours	29 Days	14
195 Hours	30 Days	15

## 9.05

Payment for vacation entitlements outlined in Article 9.03 above shall be:

- a) 21 and 22 days eight (8%) percent of gross earnings or current wage rate, whichever is greater.
- 23 to 27 days inclusive ten (10%) percent of gross earnings or current wage rate, whichever is greater.
- 28 days and over twelve (12%) percent of gross earnings or current wage rate, whichever is greater.

## 9.06

On December 31st of each year, regular and/or part-time employees shall receive a vacation bonus of two (2%) percent of gross earnings earned in that calendar year. At the Employer's discretion, employees may be allowed to take this bonus in equivalent paid time off. Upon termination an employee shall be paid the vacation bonus on gross earnings for the period from January 1st to termination date.

Senior employees shall be given preference in the selection of vacation periods. Employees who wish to take their vacation in two (2) or more periods instead of one (1) unbroken period may do so subject to the following:

Employees shall select their vacation periods in order of seniority as defined in this Agreement, however, only one (1) vacation period shall be selected by seniority until all employees in the signing group have had the opportunity to select one (1) vacation period. Subsequently, those employees who have chosen to take their vacation in two (2) or more separate periods shall select the second (2nd) and subsequent period in order of seniority.

#### 9.08

The Employer shall make available a vacation schedule by January 2nd and the employees shall indicate their vacation selection by March 15th and have such vacation confirmed by March 31st of each year.

## 9.09 Past Service Credits

All employees re-entering employment with the Employer will receive credit for past service in determining their vacation entitlement after completing two (2) full calendar years after re-entry.

## 9.10

Upon fifteen (15) days written notice, a regular employee shall be entitled to receive, prior to commencement of their vacation, a payroll advance equivalent to the amount of vacation being taken for that vacation period.

#### 9.11

All vacations must be taken within one (1) year of being earned. Requests to carry forward vacation for one additional year will not be unreasonably denied.

## ARTICLE 10 — LEAVE of ABSENCE

#### 10.01

An employee may apply for, and where possible receive, up to six (6) months unpaid leave of absence for reasons other than sick leave. Permission for such leave must be obtained from the Employer in writing.

An employee who resumes employment on the expiration of this leave of absence shall be reinstated in all respects by the Employer in the position previously occupied by the employee or in a comparable position.

#### 10.02 Bereavement Leave

a) In cases of death in the immediate family, i.e. husband, wife, common-law spouse (including same sex partner), son, daughter, step-child, father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law, sister or brother, brother-in-law or sister-in-law, niece or nephew, or aunt or uncle, or foster child or foster parent, an employee shall be granted up to five (5) working days leave of absence with full pay. One (1) day of leave with pay shall be granted to any employee who wishes to attend services

- related to the death of grandparents, grandchildren, spouse's grandparents or grandchildren.
- b) If an employee is on vacation at the time of bereavement, the employee shall be granted bereavement leave and shall have the number of days of bereavement leave added to <u>their</u> vacation entitlement.
- c) A half (1/2) day leave of absence shall be granted to an employee to attend a funeral as a pall bearer or mourner for the death of a friend or relative not covered by Article 10.2 (a).
- d) Such leave of absence will not be charged against sick leave, holiday entitlement or other accrued time off.

# 10.03 Maternity and Parental Leave

- For the purpose of this Article, "spouse" includes common-law wife within the meaning of the <u>Family Law Act</u>.
- b) Maternity and Parental Leave will be granted in accordance with the Employment Standards Act of BC. Such leave of absence may be extended by an additional six (6) months by mutual agreement upon application by the employee.
- c) Employees who have completed six (6) months of service shall be paid the maximum maternity benefits allowable under the Employment Insurance guidelines governing SEB-plans (Supplementary Employment Insurance Benefits.) Employees will receive full pay for the one (1) week waiting period and Supplementary Employment Insurance Benefit for the maximum period allowed. If an employee does not apply or qualify for Employment Insurance Benefits, the Employer will not pay monies for the period of time the employee was on maternity leave.
- d) An employee who resumes employment on the expiration of this leave of absence shall be reinstated in all respects by the Employer in the position previously occupied by the employee, or in a comparable position and with all increments to wages and benefits to which the employee would have been entitled had the leave not been taken.
- Seniority shall accrue during <u>maternity</u> and parental leave.

# 10.04 Leave for Medical/Dental Appointments

An employee will be allowed up to two (2) hours with pay from their accumulated sick leave bank for medical or dental appointments that cannot be taken on a regularly scheduled day off. The up to two (2) hours will be utilized at the beginning or end of the workday where possible. Leave for medical/dental appointments shall not exceed twenty (20) hours in any calendar year. Forty-eight (48) hours notice to the Employer is required whenever possible.

## 10.05 Family Responsibility Leave

- a) In the case of illness/injury of an immediate family member (including same sex partner), the employee shall be entitled to use entitlement from the sick leave bank up to a maximum of two (2) days at any one time for this purpose. Upon request, additional time may be approved.
- b) In the event of a serious illness or injury to a spouse (including same sex partner), dependent or non-dependent child or parent, the Employer will make a reasonable effort to provide appropriate time off not to exceed five (5) working days at any one time for the employee to make the necessary arrangements for the ongoing care of the ill/injured person. Satisfactory proof of the necessity of the employee's absence must be provided when requested. Such time off shall be deducted from the accumulated sick leave bank.

#### 10.06 Domestic Violence Leave

The employer recognizes that employees sometimes face situations of violence or abuse in their personal life that may affect their attendance and performance at work.

Workers experiencing domestic violence will be able to access up to five (5) days of paid leave (in addition to existing leave entitlements) to:

- Seek medical attention for the employee's child in respect of a physical or psychological injury or disability caused by domestic violence
- Obtain services from a victim services organization
- Obtain psychological or other professional counselling
- Relocate temporarily or permanently
- Seek legal advice or law enforcement assistance, including preparing for or participating in any civil or criminal legal proceeding related to or resulting from the domestic violence.

The foregoing leaves are accessed by request to, and approval of, the President or designate. The Employer will not disclose any information relating to the leave to anyone except when another employee requires the information to carry out their duties, or as required by law, or with the consent of the employee. Requests exceeding beyond five (5) days may be applied for as per Article 10.01.

## 10.07 Gender Reassignment Leave

An employee who provides a certificate from a medical practitioner confirming that the employee requires a leave of absence in order to undergo gender transition will be granted a leave for the procedure required during the transition period. The provisions of that

leave will follow either Article 10 - Leave of Absence or Article 11 - Sick Leave depending on the employee's request.

The union, the employer, and the employee will work together to tailor the general transition plan to the employee's needs and accommodate the employee up to the point of undue hardship for the employer. The employer will ensure it enforces its harassment free work environment and not accept any discriminatory action.

# ARTICLE 11 - SICK LEAVE, WELFARE PLANS and PENSION PLAN

## 11.01 Sick Leave

- a) The Employer will allow two (2) working days per month sick leave with full pay. Such sick leave may be accumulated from month to month and from year to year up to a maximum of fifty (50) actual working days. If requested by the Employer, a doctor's certificate must be supplied by the employee in respect of any illness extending beyond three (3) working days.
- b) During periods of lengthy illness or disability, the lost working days that occur within any waiting period as prescribed by a Wage Indemnity Plan shall be paid by the Employer from the employee's accumulative "sick leave". A claim for benefits must be made under the Wage Indemnity Plan for any disability that results in time loss in excess of the prescribed waiting period. The balance of an employee's accumulated sick leave shall be paid for lost working days where the disability causes time loss beyond the normal benefit period as prescribed by a Wage Indemnity Plan. "Sick leave" shall not accumulate while an employee is absent because of a disability. At the employee's option, accumulated sick leave may be used to offset the difference between regular salary and wage indemnity payments.
- c) Employees shall be granted extended sick leave of absence without pay of up to six (6) months with up to one (1) year of service, and twelve (12) months if over one (1) year of service, beyond the paid sick leave entitlement provided in Article 11.01, during periods of lengthy illness or disability as certified by a medical doctor. During that period of leave beyond the paid sick leave entitlement, seniority will be retained.

The Employer will continue to remit premiums for health, pension and welfare as required during periods on wage indemnity.

#### 11.02 Medical Plan

A medical plan shall be made available to all regular and regular part-time employees desiring same. The Employer shall pay the full premium cost for the employee's coverage under such a plan.

## 11.03 Wage Indemnity Plan

The COPE Local 378 Weekly Wage Indemnity Plan (1-8-39) plan providing seventy-five (75%) percent of earnings when unable to work due to sickness or accident shall be made available to all regular and regular part-time employees. The Employer shall pay the full premium cost for the employee's coverage under such plan.

## 11.04 Dental Plan

A dental plan shall be made available to all regular and regular part-time employees. The Employer shall pay the full premium cost for the employee's coverage under such a plan.

Coverage is: Part A - one hundred percent (100%)

Part B - sixty percent (60%)

Part C - sixty percent (60%) (Ortho coverage, with a \$3,000.00 lifetime

limit)

## 11.05 Extended Health Benefit Plan

The Pacific Blue Cross Extended Health Benefit Plan shall be made available to all employees. This plan shall include an eyeglass option of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) every twenty-four (24) months, a hearing aid option of three hundred dollars (\$300.00), lifetime limit, and coverage of registered psychologist treatments up to two hundred dollars (\$200.00) every twelve (12) months. Premium costs shall be fully paid by the Employer.

Extended health care lifetime limit to be increased to \$1,000,000 effective May 1, 2009.

## 11.06 Pension Plan

All employees commencing employment after July 9, 2009 will be enrolled and participate in the Municipal Pension Plan.

## 11.07 Group Life Insurance

The Employer shall pay the full cost of premiums into the Group Life Insurance Plan to provide eighty thousand dollars (\$80,000.00) for Life Insurance Coverage and Accidental Death and dismemberment benefits.

## 11.08 E.I. Premium Rebate

The Employer agrees that five-twelfths (5/12ths) of the E.I. Premium Reduction will be paid back to the employee annually, where applicable.

## 11.09 Benefit Plan Coverage

Benefit plans shall include coverage for dependents based on Medical Services Plan eligibility rules, if required by the employee.

#### 11.10 Long Term Disability

The Employer shall pay the full cost of premiums to provide a Long Term Disability Plan (seventy-five percent [75%] of wages to a maximum of three thousand dollars [\$3,000.00]).

An employee who resumes employment following a period of illness or disability shall be reinstated in all respects by the Employer in the position previously occupied by the employee or in a comparable position provided there are no medical limitations on their return.

## 11.11 Employee Assistance Program

The Employer agrees, upon request from the Union, to enter into discussions, with the intent wherever possible to implement, a mutually agreeable Employee Assistance Program.

#### ARTICLE 12 - WAGES

#### 12.01

Employees will be classified in accordance with the skills used and shall be paid not less than the minimum weekly or hourly wage rate for such classification in accordance with the table of categories, classifications and salaries and the job descriptions as set forth in Appendix "A", which is attached hereto and made part of this Agreement.

#### 12.02

Any position not covered by Appendix "A", or any new position which may be established during the life of this Agreement, shall be subject to negotiations between the Employer and the Union. In the event that the Parties are unable to agree as to the classification and rate of pay for the job in question, or in re-classifying any position of any employee which may be in dispute, the matter may be submitted to the arbitration procedure, as defined in Article 19 of this Agreement.

#### 12.03

It is expressly understood and agreed that the wage scales, herein provided for, are minimum scales.

#### 12.04

Upon recruiting new employees, the Employer agrees that previous comparable or directly related experience shall be recognized, and minimum commencing salary shall be at the six (6) month step of the salary range for the employee's classification, provided the employee has six (6) months or more such experience. New employees with less than six (6) months such experience shall be paid at a salary step in accordance with this previous experience.

#### 12.05

Where an employee has the necessary qualifications and has proven their ability to handle the work, there shall be no discrimination between men and women in the matter of appointment to vacant positions or in salaries for such positions. The Employer recognizes equal pay for equal work.

#### 12.06

Any employee working regularly on a combination of classifications shall be paid the wage scale of the highest classification worked within service range.

## 12.07

An employee assigned to a higher job classification or temporarily replacing another employee in such higher classification, shall be paid at the higher rate for the period so employed, provided the employee has the qualifications necessary and fulfils the duties of the higher job. This provision shall not apply for brief relief periods of less than one-half (½) day except that if an employee is required to work at a higher classification on a recurring basis, i.e. each day, each week or each month, the higher rate of pay shall apply as provided in Article 12.06 foregoing.

#### 12.08

Any employee hired, who reports for work and is not put to work, shall be guaranteed a minimum of four (4) hours' pay.

#### 12.09

The Parties agree that the rate of pay specified herein shall be retroactive to the expiry date of the last Agreement.

## ARTICLE 13 – SENIORITY

#### 13.01

Seniority shall mean length of continuous service with the Employer and its predecessors, as a Union member, except that credit shall be given for service prior to certification of the bargaining unit, provided such service was in a bargaining unit position.

#### 13.02

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, an employee who leaves the bargaining unit and subsequently returns, will be considered a new employee from the date of reentering the unit for purposes of seniority credit.

## 13.03

An employee laid-off and placed on the recall list under Article 14.05 and Article 14.07, will be credited with unbroken seniority upon recall within the recall period.

#### 13.04

No seniority shall accrue for short terms of temporary work except that temporary employees who attain regular status shall have seniority credited from the last date of entry as an employee of the Employer.

## 13.05

Regular part-time employees will be considered as regular employees and credited with seniority on a pro-rated basis consistent with the period employed.

## 13.06

When on approved leave of absence on Union business under Article 6.06; sick leave and extended sick leave under Article 11.01 & 11.03, an employee will continue to accrue seniority. Employees granted extended leave of absence under Article 10.01, will be credited with accumulative seniority as defined in Article 10.07.

#### 13.07

Accumulative seniority is defined as total elapsed time as a member of the Union and an employee in a job classification within the bargaining unit.

Seniority lists will be made available by the Employer at such times as may be required for the administration of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 14 - PROMOTION, LAYOFF AND RECALL

#### 14.01

The Employer shall fill job vacancies from within the office before hiring new employees, providing employees are available with the necessary qualifications to fill the vacant positions.

Each regular vacancy and/or new position shall be posted on the Employer's premises for three (3) working days, with notification of the posting to be sent to the local Union office at the time of the posting. The posting shall outline the job title, group classification, salary range, and closing date. No further applications will be received after the close of the job posting.

Employees who are absent from their place of employment may make a preliminary application for, and in anticipation of, regular vacancies or new positions which may be posted in their absence.

All employees applying for the job posting shall be notified, in writing, of receipt of their application and whether they have been successful in receiving the new job.

#### 14.02

Promotions shall be made on the basis of seniority, ability and experience. In the event two (2) or more employees have the same relative ability and experience, the employee with the greatest seniority shall be selected. Minimum salaries paid on promotion shall be at the employee's length of service step with the Employer.

#### 14.03

When moving to another position an employee shall be allowed a trial period of up to thirty (30) working days. Should the employee be considered unsuitable during the trial period, they shall be returned to their former position or one of equal rank. Salary shall be at the service step paid prior to moving or the step they might have achieved by service had they not been moved. The Employer, upon request by the employee, shall return them to their former position during the trial period.

## 14.04 Layoff

If a reduction of office staff is necessary, the Employer shall meet with the Union Representatives and the following procedure shall be adopted:

The employee with the least amount of seniority in any classification will be the first laid-off from that job, but they may displace an employee in the same or lower category with the least seniority in the category, providing they have the qualifications to satisfactorily perform the job and have greater seniority.

Employees who are displaced from their jobs, as a result of such bump-back procedure, may themselves move back and displace employees having less seniority in the same or lower classification, providing such employees have the necessary qualifications and seniority.

## 14.05 Notice of Lay-off

All regular employees shall be given in writing the following notice of lay-off or salary in lieu of notice:

- a) Four (4) weeks' notice where the employee has been employed less than three (3) years.
- b) After the completion of a period of employment of three (3) consecutive years, one (1) additional week's notice, and for each subsequent completed year of employment, an additional week's notice up to a maximum of twelve (12) weeks' notice.

The period of notice shall not coincide with an employee's annual vacation.

### 14.06

Any regular or regular part-time employee with six (6) months or more of service who is laid-off due to lack of work or redundancy, shall be placed on the recall list for a period of one (1) year. Any employee so affected may choose to terminate their employment at any time during the recall period and receive severance pay in the amount of one (1) week for each year of service to a maximum of twelve (12) weeks.

## 14.07 Recall

Notice of recall to an employee who has been laid-off shall be made by registered mail to the Union with a copy to the employee. The employee must respond to such notice within ten (10) days of receiving it or possibly lose rights of seniority and recall, however, an employee who is prevented from responding to a recall notice because of illness or other reason beyond the employee's control shall not lose such rights thereby. An employee having to give notice to another Employer shall be deemed as having complied with this ten (10) day period.

#### 14.08

Employees on the recall list shall have first rights to any vacancy in their former job classification or to a similar classification for which the employee is qualified, and the Employer will not hire for or promote to such a classification while an eligible employee is on the recall list.

#### 14.09

Recalled employees shall receive their former salary and any salary increments to which the employee would have become entitled during the period on the recall list. All rights due to seniority under this Agreement shall be unaffected by such a lay-off period.

## ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL

#### 15.01

Working conditions, wages and benefits at present in force which are not specifically mentioned in this Agreement and are not contrary to its intention, shall continue in full force and effect.

### 15.02

The Employer agrees to keep all office machinery, furniture and fixtures in a normal state of repair and working condition.

## 15.03

No work which is properly or customarily performed by employees within the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement shall be sub-contracted by the Employer to any shop, agency or person outside the bargaining unit.

Final production of the above work and all data base updating is acknowledged to be the jurisdiction of the Bargaining Unit employees.

The Employer shall specify the hours of work and the schedule of the hours to be worked, in writing, at the time of hire. The Employer will provide as much notice as possible, and in any event, will provide at minimum one weeks notice of any change in hours of work or schedules. The time frame specified may be altered by mutual agreement between the parties.

#### 15.04 Jury Duty

An employee summoned to Jury Duty or subpoenaed as a witness shall be paid wages amounting to the difference between the amount paid them for jury service or acting as a subpoenaed witness and the amount they would have earned, had they worked on such days. Employees on jury duty shall furnish the Employer with such statements of earnings as the Courts may supply. Employees shall return to work within a reasonable period of time. They shall not be required to report if less than two (2) hours of their normal shift remains to be worked. Total hours on jury duty or as a subpoenaed witness and actual work on the job in the office in one (1) day shall not exceed six and one-half (6½) hours for purposes of establishing the basic work day. Any time worked in the office in excess of the combined total of six and one-half (6½) hours, shall be considered overtime and paid as such.

## 15.05

The Employer will be responsible for all expenses for employees who are requested to attend functions on behalf of the Employer. (Receipts for expenses shall be provided at the request of the Employer.)

## 15.06

It is agreed by the Parties that the Agreement will be prepared by the Union for sign off by the parties.

## 15.07 Tuition Fees

The Employer agrees to pay tuition fees for continuing education courses as follows:

- Employer initiated 100% of course fees upon successful completion of course.
- Employee initiated 50% of course fees upon successful completion.

Courses must be employment-related and approved, in writing, by the Employer in advance.

## 15.08

The Employer shall provide a secure workplace and shall take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of employees in, and in the vicinity of, the workplace. By mutual agreement such precautions shall include, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: transportation; ensuring the presence of at least one other person on the premises for mutual protection; a "panic button" in the workplace with which to summon assistance, in the event that protective backup may be out of visual contact; and personal alarm devices, where indicated in one-person sites, to provide security to and from the building.

## 15.09

An employee appointed to a government Board or Agency, such as the Board of Referees of the Employment Insurance Commission, shall be granted leave without pay to perform the functions on the Board or Agency. The employee may however use a vacation day or a day off from any other entitlement, such as banked overtime. This request shall not be reasonably denied.

#### 15.10

Upon request an employee shall be entitled to review their personnel file annually and in the event of a grievance. The employee will have the option to have a Steward or representative present during the review. Disciplinary action shall be removed from an employee's file after 12 months for verbal or written warnings, and after 24 months for a suspension provided the employee has been discipline free for the respective 12 or 24 month period.

#### 15.11

The Employer and the Union shall form a Joint Labour Management Committee (JLMC) composed of two Union representatives and two Employer representatives, with each party selecting its own representatives. The Committee may call upon additional persons for technical information or advice as agreed by the parties. This Committee shall meet as required by either party or a minimum of once a year for the purpose of discussion and making recommendations to the parties on issues relating to the workplace that affect the parties.

The purpose of the JLMC is to promote the cooperative resolution of workplace issues as well as other related matters that may be referred to it by the parties.

The JLMC will not alter the Collective Agreement without the expressed approval of all parties and will not address any issues in the grievance procedure process. Copies of the minutes will be sent to all interested parties.

# ARTICLE 16 - DISCHARGE AND TERMINATION

#### 16.01

It is hereby agreed that the Employer has the right to discipline or discharge for just cause and notice or pay in lieu of notice may be forfeited in the event of such discharge, at the Employer's option. The Employer will provide the employee with a statement, in writing, at the time of the discipline or discharge clearly establishing the reason for such discipline or discharge.

#### 16.02

If an employee resigns without giving two (2) weeks' written notice, such employee shall forfeit all welfare plan benefits.

## 16.03

If upon joint investigation by the Union and the Employer, or by decision of the Board of Arbitration appointed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, it shall be found that an employee has been unjustly discharged, such employee shall be, subject to the award of the said Board or pursuant to the mutual findings of the Union and the Employer, reinstated to their former position without any loss of seniority or rank or benefits, and shall be compensated by the Employer for all time lost retroactive to the date of discharge.

#### 16.04

An employee whose employment is terminated by the Employer, as set forth in Article 16.01 above, shall be paid all vacation credits and salary due upon such termination of employment.

# ARTICLE 17 - TECHNOLOGICAL OR PROCEDURAL CHANGES AND SEVERANCE PAY

# 17.01 Definition, Notice, Disclosure and Consultation

- a) Wherever possible, the Employer shall provide the Union with up to six (6) months' written notice of intention to introduce automated equipment and/or procedural change.
- d) The Employer agrees to disclose full details of the planned technological and/or procedural changes, which may cause any change to an employee's normal duties or place of employment.
- c) The Employer and the Union shall enter into meaningful consultation regarding such technological and/or procedural changes prior to implementation.

Employees becoming redundant due to new equipment or procedures, shall be eligible for re-training to equip them for the operation of such new equipment or procedure, or to qualify for new positions. Such re-training will be provided by the Employer without loss of pay, to the affected employees.

## 17.03

In cases where the re-training of employees is not practical, or where other positions with the Employer are not available, the employee(s) shall elect for termination of employment or shall elect to be placed on the recall list. An employee on recall under this Article, shall receive all the benefits they had accrued during employment at the end of the recall period or at such earlier time as they may elect to terminate.

## 17.04

A specified extension of the recall period, where recall is applied under Article 17.03 above, may be mutually agreed by the employee and the Employer, subject to written approval by the Union.

## 17.05 Severance Pay

Employees whose services are terminated because of automation, changes in procedures, mergers or suspension of business shall receive severance pay. The amount of such severance pay shall be four (4) weeks where the employee has been employed for three (3) years or less, and one (1) addition week for each subsequent completed year of service to a maximum of twelve (12) weeks. Severance pay shall be payable to an employee immediately upon termination.

## 17.06 Off Premises Equipment

The Employer agrees that no computer equipment shall be placed in an employee's residence.

## ARTICLE 18 - GRIEVANCES

All grievances or disputes resulting from the operation of the Agreement or arising under specific clauses thereof, or in any way affecting relations between the Employer and the employees covered thereby shall be handled in the following manner. A grievance filed by an employee shall commence with Step 1. A grievance filed by the Union will be called a dispute and commence with Step 3.

**STEP 1:** The grievance shall be submitted, in writing, signed by the aggrieved employee, to the Job Steward, who will present such grievance or complaint to the Employer, who will give it prompt attention. In offices where there is no Job Steward, the grievance shall be presented, in writing, signed by the aggrieved employee, to the Union Representative of the Union, who will then take up the grievance as set forth in this Article. The employee may or may not be present as they may elect.

STEP 2: Any grievance must be filled within ten (10) working days after the grievance occurs, unless circumstances beyond the control of the aggrieved employee or in the nature of the grievance prevents such filing.

STEP 3: If no agreement can be reached on the grievance or dispute within ten (10) days from the date it was first presented by the Job Steward or Union Representative of the Union, the matter may then be referred to the Arbitration procedure outlined in Article 19 of this Agreement. The time limits herein set forth may be extended upon mutual agreement between the Union and the Employer.

# ARTICLE 19 - SINGLE ARBITRATOR

If a grievance or dispute is not settled pursuant to Article 18, it may then be referred to a Single Arbitrator as follows:

- The party desiring arbitration under this Article will notify the other party, in writing, in accordance with the provisions of Article 18, Step 3.
- The parties to the dispute will thereupon meet to decide upon an Arbitrator.
   Failing agreement on this within ten (10) days of such notice or in the event one of
   the parties declines the procedure, notice of Arbitration as provided in Article 19
   may be given by either party.
- 3. Upon agreed appointment of an Arbitrator, the Arbitrator shall hear the parties, settle the terms of question to be arbitrated and make <u>their</u> award within fifteen (15) days of the appointment or within such extended period as may be mutually agreed to by the parties to the dispute.
  - The Arbitrator shall deliver their award, in writing, to each of the parties and this award shall be final and binding upon each of the parties and shall be carried out forthwith.
- Each party shall pay their own costs and expenses of the Arbitration and one-half (1/2) the remuneration and disbursements or expenses of the Arbitrator.

#### ARTICLE 20 - HEALTH AND SAFETY

#### 20.01 Eye Examinations

Employees shall be entitled to the following:

- Eye examination by an Ophthalmologist/Optometrist of the employee's choice once per year.
- (b) The Employer shall grant leave of absence with pay not to exceed two (2) hours for employees to have such tests and the Employer shall assume the costs of such tests where such costs are not covered by insurance.

## 20.02 Office Equipment

The Employer will supply reasonable and adequate office equipment (to include work stations) and will consult with the COPE employees prior to purchasing and introducing new or upgraded equipment for the office.

It shall be the Employer's responsibility to ensure that all office equipment meets all WorkSafeBC and Federal Government safety standards. Upon employee request, on an annual basis all equipment shall be tested to ensure it meets the safety standard.

The Employer shall provide instruction in the safe and proper usage of all office equipment.

## ARTICLE 21 - DURATION

#### 21.01

- a) This Agreement will be in full force and effect on and after the 1st day of January, 2019, to and including the 31st day of December, 2021, and shall automatically be renewed from year to year thereafter, unless either Party serves written notice to commence collective bargaining upon the other Party hereto, at least sixty (60) days prior to the 31st day of December, 2021, or sixty (60) days prior to the 31st of December, in any year subsequent thereto.
- b) When such notice is given, the provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until a new Agreement is signed and executed or the Union commences strike action or the Employer commences a lock-out, whichever first occurs.

#### 21.02

It is mutually agreed by the Parties specifically to exclude from this Agreement the operation of Section 50(2) and (3) of the Labour Code of British Columbia Act.

Signed at	BURNARY	, BC	This	4th	Day of	NOVEMBER	, 2019
-----------	---------	------	------	-----	--------	----------	--------

Paul Faoro – President, CUPE BC Division

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION
Party of the Second Part;

Party of the Second Part;

Paul Faoro – President, CUPE BC Division

Kristi Bounegru – Bargaining Committee

E&OE

## APPENDIX "A"

## JOB TITLES AND JOB LEVELS

CATEGORY 1 - Office Assistant

CATEGORY 2 - Office Assistant 2

CATEGORY 3 - Office Assistant 3

CATEGORY 4 - Office Administrator

CATEGORY 4 - Bookkeeper

CATEGORY 5 - Accountant

- Regular part-time employees shall be subject to the regular employee wage progression scale.
- Hourly rates, except casual or temporary, are provided for calculating overtime or parttime wages and do not indicate that <u>MoveUP</u> members are hourly employees.

### Differentials

## Training

A worker who, in addition to <u>their</u> normal duties, is required to train one or more new persons in the procedures and duties of their office shall receive, in addition to <u>their</u> regular salary, a training differential of five dollars (\$5.00) per day.

## Supervisor

A worker who, in addition to <u>their</u> normal duties, is required to supervise one or more persons shall receive, in addition to <u>their</u> regular salary, a supervisory differential of five dollars (\$5.00) per day.

## APPENDIX "A"

# CATEGORIES, CLASSIFICATIONS AND SALARIES

Effective January 1, 2018 2%	OTABE	( 3 F/177 Y	2 5000
CATTECODY	START	6 MTH	12 MTH
CATEGORY 1	10.10		
Weekly	\$876.84	\$893.00	\$911.17
Hourly	\$26.98	\$27.48	\$28.04
Casual/Temporary	\$28.04		
CATEGORY 2		Ť	
Weekly	\$919.58	\$936.74	\$954.24
Hourly	\$28.29	\$28.83	\$29.37
Casual/Temporary	\$29.37		
CATEGORY 3			
Weekly	\$971.06	\$988.23	\$1,004.37
Hourly	\$29.88	\$30.41	\$30.91
Casual/Temporary	\$30.91		
CATEGORY 4			
Weekly	\$1013.80	\$1031.29	\$1047.45
Hourly	\$31.19	\$31.73	\$32.23
Casual/Temporary	\$32.23		
CATEGORY 5			
Weekly	\$1056.19	\$1,074.02	\$1,090.18
Hourly	\$32.50	\$33.05	\$33.55
Casual/Temporary	\$33.55		
CATEGORY 6			
Weekly	\$1,133.58	\$1,133.58	\$1,133.58
Hourly	\$34.88	\$34.88	\$34.88
Casual/Temporary	\$34.88		

Effective January 1, 2019 2%	START	6 MTH	12 MTH
CATEGORY 1	SIAKI	OMIII	12 11111
Weekly	\$894.38	\$910.86	\$929.39
Hourly	\$27.52	\$28.03	\$28.60
Trouriy	92/.52	\$20.03	\$20.00
Casual/Temporary	\$28.60		
CATEGORY 2			
Weekly	\$990.48	\$1,007.99	\$1,024.46
Hourly	\$30.48	\$31.02	\$31.53
	430.40	431.02	Ψ3**35
Casual/Temporary	\$31.53		
CATEGORY 3			
Weekly	\$1,034.07	\$1,051.92	\$1,068.40
Hourly	\$31.81	\$32.36	\$32.87
Casual/Temporary	\$32.87		
CATEGORY 4			
Weekly	\$1,077.31	\$1,095.50	\$1,111.98
Hourly	\$33.15	\$33.71	\$34.22
Casual/Temporary	\$34.22		
CATEGORY 5			
Weekly	\$1,156.25	\$1,156.25	\$1,156.25
Hourly	\$35.58	\$35.58	\$35.58
Casual/Temporary	\$35.58		

Effective January 1, 2020 2%	START	6 MTH	12 MTH
CATEGORY 1		0 4/4.4.4	
Weekly	\$912.26	\$929.08	\$947.98
Hourly	\$28.07	\$28.59	\$29.17
Casual/Temporary	\$29.17		
CATEGORY 2			
Weekly	\$1,010.29	\$1,028.15	\$1,044.95
Hourly	\$31.09	\$31.64	\$32.16
Casual/Temporary	\$32.16		
CATEGORY 3			100
Weekly	\$1,054.76	\$1,072.95	\$1,089.77
Hourly	\$32.45	\$33.01	\$33.53
Casual/Temporary	\$33.53		
CATEGORY 4			
Weekly	\$1,098.86	\$1,117.41	\$1,134.22
Hourly	\$33.81	\$34.39	\$34.90
Casual/Temporary	\$34.90		
CATEGORY 5			
Weekly	\$1,179.38	\$1,179.38	\$1,179.38
Hourly	\$36.29	\$36.29	\$36.29
Casual/Temporary	\$36.29		

Effective January 1, 2021 2%	START	6 MTH	12 MTH
CATEGORY 1	O TIME	OMIN	12 1/1111
Weekly	\$930.51	\$947.66	\$966.94
Hourly	\$28.63	\$29.16	\$29.76
Casual/Temporary	\$29.76		
CATEGORY 2			
Weekly	\$1,030.50	\$1,048.72	\$1,065.85
Hourly	\$31.71	\$32.27	\$32.80
Casual/Temporary	\$32.80		
CATEGORY 3			
Weekly	\$1,075.85	\$1,094.41	\$1,111.56
Hourly	\$33.10	\$33.67	\$34.20
Casual/Temporary	\$34.20		
CATEGORY 4			
Weekly	\$1,120.84	\$1,139.76	\$1,156.91
Hourly	\$34.49	\$35.07	\$35.60
Casual/Temporary	\$35.60		
CATEGORY 5			
Weekly	\$1,202.96	\$1,202.96	\$1,202.96
Hourly	\$37.02	\$37.02	\$37.02
Casual/Temporary	\$37.02		

## APPENDIX "B"

## JOB DESCRIPTIONS

The following job descriptions are intended to describe the type of work performed within the <u>five</u> categories. The titles are not intended to restrict the Employer's ability to transfer a worker to other titles within a category or even other categories in order to maximize the use of a workers' time. This transferability shall not be construed to mean that a worker will be able to perform all the work itemized under other titles within a category.

These descriptions cover workers employed in Union offices.

#### CATEGORY 1

## Office Assistant

Employees in this category perform a variety of office operations with supervision and assist with basic clerical support functions as required.

## **Duties and Responsibilities**

- Reception
- Basic office support
- Answering phone
- · Directing calls
- Mail distribution
- Mail outs
- Filing
- Data entry
- Ability to maintain confidentiality

#### Qualifications

- · Excellent written and oral fluency in English
- Grade 12 and 6 months experience

#### CATEGORY 2

#### Office Assistant 2

Employees in this category perform a variety of office functions with or without supervision. The use of independent judgement relating to the Employer's direction is required.

#### **Duties and Responsibilities**

- Employees may perform duties ranging from basic to intermediate level of the use of office applications such as productivity and reporting tools
- · Draft letters, memos, bulletins, notices and reports, as necessary, by word processing, etc
- Monitor membership database and website

- Prepare, edit, and distribute minutes of committee meetings as requested: assist various Local committees and divisions by organizing and providing general information, as requested, distribute this information as required, and otherwise helping these groups to fulfill their mandates and/or goals
- · Ability to maintain confidentiality

#### Qualifications

- · Excellent written & oral fluency in English
- Grade 12 AND 1 year related experience
- Excellent organizational skills
- Excellent communication skills
- · Thorough understanding of trade unions
- Good mathematical skills
- Productive keyboard skills (eg: 40 50 wpm)
- Excellent knowledge of word processing, database management, and email programs (eg: Microsoft Office, Adobe Creative Suite etc)

#### CATEGORY 3

#### Office Assistant 3

Employees in this category perform at an advanced level in the use of office applications and technical support. Employees may work independently or as part of a team and may be required to act as confidential secretary to one or more persons.

#### **Duties and Responsibilities**

- Liaises with the Executive members for the purpose of arranging meetings, booking rooms, distributing minutes & notices, arranging couriers, arranging for printing and duplicating of materials, etc
- Prepares and distributes general correspondence, agendas and other miscellaneous materials for the Executive members as requested, by word processing, etc; photocopies as necessary; prepares items for mailing as necessary
- · Arranges meeting rooms for Executive and General Membership meetings, as necessary
- Maintains website by updating contact information and making necessary changes
- Maintains all office supplies by monitoring usage, and purchasing needed supplies as necessary
- Registers members and staff for education classes, conferences, and/or conventions related to union business; arranges itineraries for attendees of such courses, conferences, and/or conventions
- Maintains email and voicemail systems
- Assists in case research as required/requested
- · Ability to maintain confidentiality

#### Qualifications

- Excellent written & oral fluency in English
- Grade 12 AND 3 years related experience
- Excellent organizational skills

- Excellent communication skills
- · Thorough understanding of trade unions
- Productive keyboard skills (eg: 40 50 wpm)
- Excellent knowledge of word processing, database management, and email programs (eg: Microsoft Office, Adobe Creative Suite, etc)

#### CATEGORY 4

Office Administrator and Bookkeeper may be independent positions, or blended as necessary by the employer.

### Office Administrator

Employees in the category work independently and <u>are</u> responsible for the <u>effective</u> operation of the office. Provides clerical and administrative support <u>including the direction of office assistants</u>, <u>maintaining</u> and monitoring membership databases, and websites.

## **Duties and Responsibilities**

- Liaises with the Executive Board for the purpose of arranging meetings, booking rooms, distributing minutes & notices, arranging couriers, arranging for printing an duplicating of materials, etc
- Prepares and distributes general correspondence, agendas and other miscellaneous materials for the Executive members as requested, by word processing, etc; photocopies as necessary; prepares items for mailing as necessary
- · Arranges meeting rooms for Executive and General Membership meetings, as necessary
- Maintains website by updating contact information and makes necessary changes
- Maintains all office supplies by monitoring usage, and purchasing needed supplies from retail outlets as necessary
- Registers members and staff for educations classes, conferences, and/or conventions related to union business; arranges itineraries for attendees of such courses, conferences, and/or conventions
- Maintains email and voicemail systems
- · Assists in case research as required/requested
- Maintain confidentiality of local union files and operations

#### Qualifications

- · Excellent written & oral fluency in English
- A minimum of Grade 12 and 5 years related experience
- Excellent organizational skills
- Excellent communication skills
- Thorough understanding of trade unions
- Productive keyboard skills 60 wpm minimum
- Excellent knowledge of word processing, database management, and email programs (eg: Microsoft Office, Adobe Creative Suite etc)

## Bookkeeper

Employees in the category work independently. Provides clerical, administrative and bookkeeping support by maintaining bookkeeping and payroll systems.

## **Duties and Responsibilities**

- Maintains bookkeeping systems, including accounts receivable (entering & depositing cheques to bank accounts) and accounts payable (preparing cheque requisitions and/or journal vouchers, and processing invoices for payment, preparing cheques for signature from invoices, wage reimbursement requests, expense reimbursement requests, liaises with the Local Treasurer or designate to match payables to motions or where applicable
- <u>Calculates standard payroll deductions</u>, <u>prepares T4s</u>, <u>ensures remittances are submitted to Canada Revenue Agency as well as appropriate Pension Plans</u>, and <u>Health and Welfare Plans</u>
- Coordinates and assists the Trustees in completing the Locals annual audit by reviewing with them the requirements of the annual audit and providing the requisite documentation
- Produces financial information/reports on membership dues, accounts payables/receivables, monthly reconciliations, year end financial statements, and electronic banking
- · Maintains confidentiality of local union files and operations

## Qualifications

- Excellent written & oral fluency in English
- · A minimum of Grade 12 and 5 years related experience
- · Successful completion of a recognized accounting course and 5 years related experience
- Familiar with Accounting software (eg: Quickbooks, Simply Accounting etc)
- Excellent organizational skills
- · Excellent communication skills
- · Thorough understanding of trade unions
- Good mathematical skills
- Productive keyboard skills 60 wpm minimum
- Excellent knowledge of word processing, and email programs (eg: Microsoft Office, Adobe Creative Suite etc)

## CATEGORY 5

Employees in this category work as professional Accountants and are responsible for the full accounting cycle, including processing all journal entries, certified audits, receivables, payables, payroll and cash flow functions.

## **Duties and Responsibilities**

- Provides professional accounting services for CUPE locals
- Maintains bookkeeping systems, including accounts receivable (entering & depositing cheques to bank accounts) and accounts payable (preparing cheque requisitions and/or journal vouchers, and processing invoices for payment, preparing cheques for signature from invoices, wage reimbursement requests, expense reimbursement requests, liaises with the Local Treasurer or designate to match payables to motions or where applicable

- Full payroll responsibilities including calculating standard payroll deductions, prepares
   T4s, ensures remittances are submitted to Canada Revenue Agency as well as appropriate
   Pension Plans, and Health and Welfare Plans
- Coordinates and assists the Treasurer and or Trustees in completing the Locals annual audit by reviewing with them the requirements of the annual audit and providing the requisite documentation
- · Coordinate any third party professional audits
- Produces financial information/reports on membership dues, accounts payables/receivables, monthly reconciliations, year end financial statements, and electronic banking.
- Ensure all banking transactions are reflected in the general ledger in a timely and accurate manner;
- Maintain confidentiality of local union files and operations

#### Qualifications

- CPA designation; A minimum of Grade 12 and 5 years related experience
- · Excellent written & oral fluency in English
- Familiar with Accounting software (eg: Quickbooks, Simply Accounting etc)
- Excellent organizational skills
- Excellent communication skills
- · Thorough understanding of trade unions
- Good mathematical skills
- Productive keyboard skills 60 wpm minimum
- Excellent knowledge of work processing, and email programs (eg: Microsoft Office, Excel, Adobe Creative Suite etc)

BETWEEN: C.U.P.E. BC DIVISION, CUPE LOCALS 23, 374, 379, 389, 561, 718, 728,

873, 900, 1004, 3500, 3523, 3742

AND: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

## SEXUAL AND/OR PERSONAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE

- (a) MoveUP and the Employer recognizes the right of employees to work in an environment free from sexual and/or personal harassment, and shall take such actions as are necessary respecting an employee engaging in sexual harassment in the workplace. For the purpose of this article the "Employer" shall be defined as any elected executive board member or exempt employee of the applicable CUPE local or CUPE BC.
- (b) Sexual harassment means engaging in a course of vexatious comment or conduct of a sexual nature that is known or ought reasonably to be known to be unwelcome and shall include, but not be limited to:
  - sexual solicitation or advance or inappropriate touching and sexual assault;
  - (ii) a reprisal, or threat of reprisal, which might reasonably be perceived as placing a condition of a sexual nature on employment by a person in authority after such sexual solicitation or advance or inappropriate touching is rejected.
- (c) Personal harassment means any conduct, comment, gesture or contact based on any of the prohibited grounds of discrimination under the Canadian Human Rights Act (race, national or ethnic origin, colour, religion, age, sex, marital or family status, and disability) that is likely to cause offence or humiliation to any person.
  - (i) An employee who wishes to pursue a concern arising from an alleged sexual and/or personal harassment may submit a complaint, in writing, within <u>sixty (60)</u> days of the latest alleged occurrence through the Union directly to the Executive of the Employer. Complaints of this nature shall be treated in strict confidence by both the Union and the Employer. An attempt to resolve the complaint by informing the alleged harasser and the complainant on a course of future conduct shall be made within 10 days of the complaint at this stage and/or proceed to Section, (ii) herein.
  - (ii) In the event no agreement is reached in Section (i) the Employer and the Union will, by mutual agreement, designate an unbiased third party to conduct an investigation. The designate shall investigate the complaint and shall submit their report to the Union and Employer in writing within 14 days of the conclusion of the investigation. The Employer shall indicate to the Union what action, if any, shall be taken to resolve the issue.

- (iii) An alleged offender shall be given notice of the substance of such a complaint under this clause and shall be given notice of and be entitled to attend, participate in, and be represented at any hearing under this clause.
- (iv) Where the Union is not satisfied with the Employer's response or resolution, the Union may submit a grievance directly to Step 2 of the grievance procedure.
- (v) Where the complaint is determined to be of a frivolous, vindictive or vexatious nature, the Employer may take appropriate action. Such action shall only be for just cause and may be grieved pursuant to Article 18.
- (vi) Pending determination of the complaint, the Employer may take interim measures to separate the <u>the respondent and the complainant</u> if deemed necessary.

E&OE Signed off this	day of	20
For the Union	For the Employ	eer

BETWEEN: C.U.P.E. BC DIVISION, CUPE LOCALS 23, 379, 389, 523, 561, 728, 873,

900, 1004, 3500, 3523

AND: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

#### HOURS OF WORK

Any existing arrangements providing for a four (4) day work week or a nine-day fortnight (or such arrangements agreed to during the term of the Collective Agreement) will not be changed during the term of the collective Agreement except by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union. This undertaking is to be incorporated into a Letter of Understanding between the Parties.

# SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION Party of the First Part; Party of the Second Part;

Original signed by	Original signed by
Mark Hancock – Chair, Employers Committee	Barry Hodson — Business Representative
Original signed by	Original signed by
Dave Ginter – Employers Committee	Charmaine Murray — Secretary-Treasurer

BETWEEN: C.U.P.E. BC DIVISION, CUPE LOCALS 23, 379, 389, 523, 561, 728, 873,

900, 1004, 3500, 3523

AND: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

For those employees who now or in the future move from COPE Pension Plan to the Municipal Pension Plan, at the end of each year the total of the Employer payments to the MPP will be deducted from the COPE Pension Plan calculation of eleven (11%) of salary as calculated under the Memorandum of Agreement, and after such deduction should there be a positive balance remaining, such balance shall be paid into the employees RRSP upon submission of the proper forms as required by Revenue Canada for such payment.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION

Party of the First Part;	Party of the Second Part;
David Ginter – President, CUPE Local 561	Barbara Junker - Union Representative
Mark Hancock – President, CUPE Local 1004	Nadine Ford – Bargaining Committee
	Lori Watt – Bargaining Committee

E&OE

BETWEEN: C.U.P.E. BC DIVISION, CUPE LOCALS 23, 379, 389, 523, 561, 728, 873,

900, 1004, 3500, 3523

AND:

MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

The parties agree that Employers who choose to exercise their option in accordance with Article 12.03 to pay rates above those specified in Appendix "A" will notify the Union by letter of the rates paid to their employees.

If it is the intention of the Employer to hire an employee whose duties fall outside the existing classifications contained in the Agreement, the Employer must notify the Union before hiring.

# SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION Party of the First Part; Party of the Second Part;

Dave Ginter – President, CUPE Local 561	Barbara Junker – Union Representative
Mark Hancock – President, CUPE Local 1004	Nadine Ford – Bargaining Committee
	Lori Watt – Bargaining Committee

### MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT #1

BETWEEN: C.U.P.E. BC DIVISION, CUPE LOCALS 23, 374, 379, 389, 561, 718, 728,

873, 900, 1004, 3500, 3523, 3742

AND: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

This letter will apply to those employees covered by the COPE Pension Plan.

Employer contributions to COPE 15 Pension Plan shall be eleven (11%) of salary.

- a) Hours on which payment shall be based are as follows:
  - Annual Vacation
  - Straight time hours worked
  - Statutory Holidays
  - Banked overtime hours if taken in pay
  - Straight time equivalent of overtime hours if not banked
  - Paid Sick leave
- Contributions shall be made for all employees who are not covered by Employer's existing pension plans
- c) The Employer shall make payment to the Trustees of the COPE Pension Plan, by a single payment made by the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) of the month following that which payment covers, to an agency designated for that purpose by the COPE.
- e) COPE Local 378 will send a copy of the annual statement of the Pension Plan to the President of each Local, no later than one (1) month from the date of a written request by an Employer party to this Agreement.

## SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION Party of the First Part; Party of the Second Part;

David Ginter – President, CUPE Local 561	Barbara Junker - Union Representative
Mark Hancock – President, CUPE Local 1004	Nadine Ford – Bargaining Committee
	Lori Watt – Bargaining Committee

#### APPENDIX "F"

#### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN CUPE BC DIVISION AND COPE 378

This letter is attached to and forms part of the CUPE BC and Locals collective agreement but applies only to the employees of CUPE BC Division and sets no precedent for any other Trade Union Offices.

The parties agree to replace Articles 7.01; 7.02 and 7.06 with:

#### 7.01 Regular Weekly Hours

The regular working week shall consist of thirty (30) hours for the office and clerical staff divided into five (5) days from Monday to Friday inclusive.

#### 7.02 Regular Daily Hours

The regular working day shall consist of six (6) hours, between 8-8:00 am and 5:00 pm for the office and clerical staff.

#### 7.06 Overtime

All hours worked in excess of the regular working day shall be considered as overtime and shall be paid for at the rate of time and one-half the employee's regular rate of pay up to three (3) hours. After three (3) hours, double the employee's regular rate of pay. For computing an hourly rate on which overtime will be paid, the wage rate in Appendix "A" of this Agreement shall be divided by thirty (30).

For purposes of calculating overtime, paid leave provided by this Agreement shall be considered part of the regular scheduled working day.

Employees choosing to take time off in lieu of overtime worked shall receive time off at the applicable overtime rate, at a time mutually agreed to between the employee and the Employer. In no case shall overtime be accumulated beyond twelve (12) months.

At that time, if agreement cannot be reached for lieu time off, payment will be made at the rate applicable at the time the overtime was worked.

And Article 8.01 with:

#### 8.01 List of Holidays

Employees shall be given the following holidays without deduction of pay:

New Year's Day	Canada Day	Christmas Day Eve
Family Day	BC Day	Christmas Day
Good Friday	Labour Day	Boxing Day
Easter Monday	Thanksgiving Day	New Year's Eve Day
Victoria Day	Remembrance Day	

And any other day that may be stated a legal holiday by the Provincial and/or Federal

The Employer further agrees that should one (1) of the above statutory holidays fall on either a Saturday, a Sunday, or an employee's regularly scheduled day off and no other day is proclaimed in leiu thereof, the employee shall receive an additional day or days off with pay, to be taken the

working day preceding the holiday or the working day succeeding the holiday or at a time mutually agreed by the Employer and the employee.

All days between Christmas and New Year's Day shall be time off with pay as described in Appendix "D" attached.

#### 15.12

All employees not using employer-provided parking shall receive a monthly transportation allowance equal to the current rate charged 1, 2 or 3 Zone Translink Monthly Passes, If Translink implements a distance-based fare system, both parties will meet to discuss a monthly allowance equivalent under the new fare system.

#### APPENDIX "D"

#### Christmas/New Year's Shut Down

M	T	W	T	F	S	S	M	T	W	T	F	S	S	M	T	W	T
23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	3						
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	3	S				
		23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	3				
		-55	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	3			
				23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	3		
				0000	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	3	
					22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	3

And Articles 9.01, 9.02, 9.03, 9.04 and 9.05 with:

#### 9.01

a) Employees shall be entitled to vacations in accordance with length of service to become due on the anniversary date of the employee as follows:

Less than 1 year of service	1 2/3 days per month
After 1 year of service	4 weeks per year
After 5 years of service	5 weeks per year
After 10 years of service	6 weeks per year
After 15 years of service	7 weeks per year
After 20 years of service	8 weeks per year
After 25 years of service	9 weeks per year

#### b) Vacation Bonus

In addition to pay for the above, there shall be an additional payment of \$200.00 for every week of vacation entitlement to be known as vacation bonus. The employee will have the choice of receiving their bonus either on their anniversary date or the first pay period in June of each year. The employee shall make their choice known to the Employer no later than April 30, in any given year. The vacation bonus payments will be included as a pensionable earning.

Add Appendices "A" (Categories, Classification and Salaries) and Appendices "B" (Job Descriptions)

#### APPENDIX "A"

#### Salary Schedule (continued)

January 1, 2016 January 1, 2017 GROUP A Start Rate 1-Year Rate Start Rate 1-Year Rate Regional Administrative Officer \$1960.67 \$1990.08 Fleet Manager GROUP B Administrative Assistant \$1366.90 \$1347.04 \$1367.25 \$1387.41 Research Assistant Technology Assistant Job Evaluation Assistant Health and Safety Assistant Senior Collective Agreement Analyst Recording Secretary Bookkeeper \$1295.28 \$1321.01 \$1340.83 \$1314.71 **Executive Secretary** \$1286,10 \$1267.10 \$1292.87 \$1312.26 Collective Agreement Analyst Personnel Clerk \$1248.39 \$1274.13 \$1267.11 \$1293.24 Secretary (1-clerical office) \$1234.55 \$1260.33 \$1253.06 \$1279.24 Part-time Secretary (1-clerical office) S41.15 /hr \$42.01/hr \$41.76 /hr \$42.64 /hr Purchasing & Receiving Clerk \$1232.87 \$1258.60 \$1251.36 \$1277.48 Secretary \$1214.56 \$1240.26 \$1232.77 \$1258.86 Part-time Secretary \$40.48 /hr \$41.34 /hr \$41.09 /hr \$41.96 /hr Statistical Clerk-typist \$1195.40 \$1221.15 \$1213.33 S1239.47 Part-time Clerk-typist \$39.18 /hr \$39.90 /hr \$39.77 /hr \$40.50 /hr Clerk-Typist \$1175.52 \$1197.17 \$1193.15 \$1215.13 Receptionist Receptionist Clerk-Typist Machine Operator Maintenance/Stockroom Clerk

<sup>\*\*</sup>Plus 7% over the rate for bilingualism

Title	Annual	Bi-Weekly	Weekly	Hourly
Accountant	\$80,184.00	\$3,084.00	\$1,542.00	\$51.40
Sr. Accountant	\$93,950.48	\$3,613.48	\$1,806.74	\$60.22

It is agreed that whatever wage increase that is negotiated for the employees of the CUPE Regional Office shall apply to this salary schedule.

# SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION Party of the First Part; Party of the Second Part;

## SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION Party of the First Part; Party of the Second Part;

As previously signed	As previously signed
Barry O'Neill - President	Paul Bjarnason— Business Representative
As previously signed	As previously signed
Colleen Jordan – Secretary Treasurer	Sheila Morrison — Secretary-Treasurer

#### APPENDIX "D"

## VARIANCE TO THE COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CUPE LOCAL 900 AND MOVEUP Re: Mary Follweiter

#### ARTICLE 5 - DEFINITION OF EMPLOYEES

#### 5.01 Probationary Period

All new employees will be considered probationary for the first thirty (30) days of employment. After thirty (30) days employment an employee will become regular. Employees working on an irregular basis will be considered probationary for the first twenty (20) days of employment.

#### 5.02 Regular

Deleted

5.03

Employees working less than full time shall receive:

The value of benefit referred to in Article 11.02, 03, 05, 06, 07 and 08.

Sick leave entitlement shall be on a pro rata basis consistent with time employed. Statutory holidays on a pro rata basis consistent with the number of hours normally worked in weeks not containing a holiday.

Annual vacation entitlement shall be pro-rated in accordance with the actual time worked during the period the vacation was earned and shall be in proportion to the entitlement of a full time regular employee with the same calendar period of service.

Vacation pay shall be provided in Article 9.

5.04

Deleted

5.05

Deleted

5.06

Deleted

#### ARTICLE 6 - UNION RECOGNITION

6.03

Deleted "within reason"

6.04

Leave of Absence requested by the Union for an employee to attend to Union business shall be granted by the Employer.

#### ARTICLE 7 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Amendments made at the time of negotiation have been incorporated into the existing COPE Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 8 - STATUTORY HOLIDAYS

8.01

Add New Year's Eve Day, Christmas Eve Day and Heritage Day

8.02

That amendment has been incorporated into the existing COPE agreement.

#### ARTICLE 9 - ANNUAL VACATION

9.02

Each employee who completed three (3) years of service shall receive twenty (20) working days paid vacation. Pay for such vacation shall be at the employee's current wage rate or eight (8%) percent of gross earnings for the period in which vacation was earned, whichever is greater.

9.03

For each year of service in excess of three (3) years, each employee shall receive one (1) working day paid vacation, to a maximum of thirty (30) working days.

9.06

Each employee will receive on or about their anniversary date each year a vacation bonus of thirty-four (34%) percent of the employee's total vacation pay in the previous year.

#### ARTICLE 10 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

#### 10.02 Bereavement Leave

Amendments have been incorporated into existing Collective Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 13 - SENIORITY

13.04

Deleted

13.05

Deleted

#### ARTICLE 14 - PROMOTION, LAYOFF AND RECALL

### 14. 05 Notice of Layoff

All employees shall be given in writing the following notice of layoff or salary in lieu of notice:

Four (4) weeks' notice where an employee has been employed less than three (3) years.

After the completion of a period of employment of three (3) consecutive years, one (1) additional weeks' notice and for each subsequent completed year of employment, an additional week's notice up to a maximum of eight (8) weeks' notice.

The period of notice shall not coincide with an employee's annual vacation.

#### ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL

### 15. 04 Jury Duty

Amendments have been incorporated into existing Collective Agreement.

#### 15.07 Tuition Fees

Amendments have been incorporated into existing Collective Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 16 - DISCHARGE AND TERMINATION

#### 16.02

Deleted into existing Collective

## ARTICLE 17 - TECHNOLOGICAL OR PROCEDURAL CHANGES AND SEVERANCE PAY

#### 17.01 Definition, Notice, Disclosure and Consultation

Amendments have been incorporated into existing Collective Agreement.

#### 17.02

Add: If notice is given prior to the vacation period of any employee, such employee shall receive two (2) weeks wages, at the employee's current salary, in addition to vacation pay which the employee is entitled plus all other benefits.